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REGAL FOOD I, INC.,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 10-2109 LC



)

SUPERVISOR OF ALCOHOL AND
)

TOBACCO CONTROL,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION 


The Supervisor of Alcohol and Tobacco Control (“Supervisor”) has cause to discipline Regal Food I, Inc. (“Regal Food”) because its employee and another individual who served as a stockholder, director, and president are of bad moral character, and its employee failed to prevent or suppress unlawful conduct while on the premises of Regal Food’s retail locations.

Procedure


Regal Food filed a complaint on November 12, 2010, seeking this Commission’s determination that the Supervisor’s order revoking Regal Food’s original package 5% beer license be vacated.  The Supervisor filed his answer on December 15, 2010 his amended answer on January 4, 2011.

This Commission convened a hearing on the complaint on July 15, 2011.  Charles H. Billings represented Regal Food.  Assistant Attorney General Daryl Hylton represented the 
Supervisor.  The matter became ready for our decision on October 21, 2011, when the last written argument was filed.
Findings of Fact

1. Regal Food holds an original package 5% beer license.
2. Regal Food has two separate retail locations known as Regal Food I and Regal Food II.

Bassam Hamed
3. Bassam Hamed incorporated Regal Food in October 2000.

4. Bassam Hamed served as the registered agent for Regal Food at all relevant times.

5. Bassam Hamed served as Regal Food’s president from December 1, 2000 through April 16, 2009.
6. Bassam Hamed served as Regal Food’s director from March 2004 through April 2009.

7. Bassam Hamed owned ten percent or more of Regal Food’s stock from October 2000 through June 2009.

8. On November 24, 2009, in the Federal District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri, Bassam Hamed pled guilty to:

…participation in a conspiracy to participate in the conduct of the affairs of an enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity from October 2000 to the present…
9. Specifically, between January 2000 and October 2008, Bassam Hamed, along with others, sent money in excess of $10,000 overseas in a manner to avoid reporting requirements under 31 USC §5316.

Ghandi Hamed
10. Ghandi Hamed was employed by Regal Food from 2003 through the time of the hearing.  He operated Regal Food II from 2003 through November 2009.

11. On November 24, 2009, in the Federal District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri, Ghandi Hamed pled guilty to:
…participation in a conspiracy to participate in the conduct of the affairs of an enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity from October 2000…
12. The plea agreement went on to state:

Defendant Ghandi Hamed operated Regal Food II, a convenience store at 3852 Virginia, from July 2003 until the present.  Beginning in October 2005, [Ghandi Hamed] began purchasing infant formula which he believed was stolen in interstate commerce from a confidential informant and undercover officer.  [Ghandi Hamed] would then resell the formula on a large profit margin, either as retail or bulk to other stores or distributers [sic].  On various occasions, [Ghandi Hamed] purchased approximately 555 cases of powder and liquid infant formula valued at $38,824 for $7,749.  [Ghandi Hamed] also purchased electronic equipment, such as computers and Global Positioning Systems, from the undercover officer.  [Ghandi Hamed] paid a total of $2,000 for these items which he believed was stolen property, when their true value was approximately $9,598.

. . . .

Profits from the resale of stolen property and general profits from the operation of the store were placed in a business checking account.  [Ghandi Hamed] received his salary from that account which was placed in a personal account.  From that personal account, [Ghandi Hamed] transferred money overseas to Palestine in such a way that the reporting requirements for the exportation of monetary instruments would not be triggered.  Defendant Ghandi Hamed withdrew from the conspiracy before January 11, 2007.
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the complaint.
  The Supervisor has the burden to prove the facts by a preponderance of the credible evidence.
  The Supervisor argues there is cause to discipline Regal Food’s license under § 311.060.2(1) and 11 CSR 70-2.130(13).
Section 311.060 states:

2. (1) No person, partnership or corporation shall be qualified for a license under this law if such person, any member of such partnership, or such corporation, or any officer, director, or any stockholder owning, legally or beneficially, directly or indirectly, ten percent or more of the stock of such corporation, or other financial interest therein, or ten percent or more of the interest in the business for which the person, partnership or corporation is licensed, or any person employed in the business licensed under this law shall have had a license revoked under this law or shall have been convicted of violating the provisions of any law applicable to the manufacture or sale of intoxicating liquor since the ratification of the twenty-first amendment to the Constitution of the United States, or shall not be a person of good moral character.
Regulation 11 CSR 70-2.130 states:

(13) Improper Acts.

(A) At no time, under any circumstances, shall any licensee or his/her employees immediately fail to prevent or suppress any violent quarrel, disorder, brawl, fight or other improper or unlawful conduct of any person upon the licensed premises, nor shall any licensee or his/her employees allow any indecent, profane or obscene language, song, entertainment, literature or advertising material upon the licensed premises.

(B) In the event that a licensee or his/her employee knows or should have known, that an illegal or violent act has been committed on or about the licensed premises, they immediately shall report the occurrence to law enforcement authorities and shall cooperate with law enforcement authorities and agents of the Division of Liquor Control during the course of any investigation into an occurrence.
§ 311.060.2(1) – Good Moral Character

The Supervisor argues that Regal Food’s license is subject to discipline because Bassam Hamed was its president, a director, and stockholder at the time he conspired to violate the reporting requirements of 31 USC § 5316.  Also, Ghandi Hamed was Regal Food’s employee when he conspired to violate the reporting requirements of 31 USC § 5316.  Specifically, the Supervisor argues that the Hameds knowing participation in this conspiracy is contrary to justice, honesty, modesty and good morals.

The Hameds, in turn, claim that failure to report under 31 USC § 5316 is not a crime of moral turpitude pursuant to United States v. Bajakajian.
  The flaw in the Hameds’ reasoning is two-fold.  First, they point to the dissent, not the majority opinion in the case.  Second, the Supervisor is addressing the issue of the conspiracy, not simply the failure to report.

Good moral character is honesty, fairness, and respect for the law and the rights of others.
  The Hamed knowingly participated in the conspiracy to evade the reporting requirements of 31 USC § 5316.  This was not an inadvertent mistake, but a willful act intended to deceive the United States government.  This shows a lack of honesty, fairness and respect for the law.  The Hameds lacks good moral character.  In addition, Ghandi Hamed, as an employee of Regal Food, purchased large quantities of what he believed to be stolen merchandise that he re-sold.  Ghandi Hamed further lacks good moral character for these additional actions.  We find cause for discipline under § 311.060.2(1).

Regulation 11 CSR 70-2.130 – Improper Acts – Naiel Abdeljabbar

Regulation 11 CSR 70-2.130 was promulgated under § 311.660,
 which states:
The supervisor of liquor control shall have the authority to suspend or revoke for cause all such licenses; and to make the following 
regulations, without limiting the generality of provisions empowering the supervisor of liquor control as in this chapter set forth as to the following matters, acts and things:

*   *   *

(6) Establish rules and regulations for the conduct of the business carried on by each specific licensee under the license, and such rules and regulations if not obeyed by every licensee shall be grounds for the revocation or suspension of the license[.]
The facts in the plea agreement are not clear as to the location where Ghandi Hamed purchased what he believed to be stolen merchandise.  However, he did re-sell this merchandise at retail on the premises of Regal Food II in violation of 18 USC § 1962.  By engaging in this unlawful conduct at Regal Food II, Regal Food’s employee failed to prevent or suppress such unlawful conduct in violation of 11 CSR 70-2.130(13)(A).  Thus, Regal Food’s license is subject to discipline under § 311.660(6) and 11 CSR 70-2.130(13)(A).
Summary


Regal Food’s license is subject to discipline under §§ 311.060.2(1), 311.660(6) and 
11 CSR 70-2.130(13)(A) because its employee and another individual who served as a stockholder, director, and president are of bad moral character and its employee failed to prevent or suppress unlawful conduct while at Regal Food II.

SO ORDERED on July 25, 2012.


                                                                ___________________________________

                                                                SREENIVASA   RAO   DANDAMUDI 


                                                                Commissioner
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